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Summary

This document provides the results of an architattwindshield survey of the industrial and
manufacturing properties, Ward 24, in the City afl®uis (Independent City). The survey, completed
in 2012, was conducted in an effort to identify aedommend properties within the study area that
appear eligible for the National Register of HigtoPlaces (NRHP) under the Multiple Property
Documentation Form (MPDF) entitled, “Manufacturingd Goods Distribution Resources, St. Louis
Independent City” (drafted, April 2012). This docemt provides an evaluation of resources within the
24" Ward that have the potential to be individuallstéd under the MPDF. Both the MPDF and the
survey report were completed for the Skinker DeBale Community Council in 2012.

The 24" Ward lies within the project study area associatéti the MPDF — which (in addition to the
boundaries of the 34Ward) extends east to Kingshighway Avenue andhhyigorders Interstate-44 to
the south. The study area was selected to evahidteentury manufacturing and distribution propesti
associated within the central railroad/River desePéndustrial corridor. Properties within thé"2ard
that fit the context of the MPDF are situated prifgaalong Hampton, Southwest and Manchester
Avenues. The industrial corridor follows the pafhttee Missouri-Pacific and Frisco Railroad tracés,
well as Interstate 44 and the River des Peres.aféa was traditionally associated with brick, ieord
steel industries; but in more recent decades hasnie primarily associated with warehousing and
distribution activities.

Landmarks drove the project area within thd 2¢ard and identified a large number of warehouse /
industrial properties along the Manchester Avemierstate 44/ River des Peres corridor. The
accompanying report provides information regardimgsurvey methodology and properties that may be
eligible for listing in the NRHP under the MPDF. ditionally, the report includes recommendations for

future activities.



Methodology

The 24" Ward (Figure 1) of St. Louis (Independent Citybisunded roughly by Interstate 64 (north),
Hampton Avenue (east), Arsenal Street (south) as@adsland Avenue/St. Louis City limits (west).
The survey area lies within the project study aesociated with the Multiple Property Documentation
Form (MPDF) context entitled, “Mid-Twentieth CenyubDevelopment of Industrial and Manufactured
Goods Distribution Facilities in the Central Ra#lcband Interstate Corridor, 1940-1970” (Figure 2).

In March-April 2012, Landmarks Association of Sauis, Inc. completed a windshield inventory of the
24" Ward study area. During the course of the inventoandmarks photographed 13 properties (some
of which contain more than one building or resourc8ix of the inventoried properties are
recommended as potentially eligible for the NatloRagister of Historic Places (NRHP) under the
MPDF. The inventory did not identify a cohesivetbig district within the neighborhood’s boundaries

In addition to the visual/photographic survey, Lianadks completed preliminary research utilizing city
directories, Sanborn Fire Insurance mapshé.ouis Daily Recorduilding permits, and construction
records on file at the City of St. Louis/Propertgs&ssor’s Office. The preliminary research estabdls
an understanding of the project area and assistetha development of the MPDF and related
manufacturing context for mid-twentieth century gedies. The windshield survey was completed by
driving along all of the streets identified in tN8DF study area (within the $4ward), in an effort to
identify any properties that may be eligible foe tNRHP.

Research for the project was conducted at thevioillp repositories: Landmarks Association of St.
Louis Inc.; St. Louis Public Library; and the Missb Historical Society (St. Louis). Historical
information gathered during the records searchwtiéized to comprise the historical information kit
this document and to support recommendations.
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Figure 1. Map illustrating the 24" Ward Boundaries, St. Louis (Independent City).
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Figure 2. Project Study area associated with the M PDF: Manufacturing and Goods Distribution Resour ces, St. Louis
Independent City (provided by the Skinker-DeBaliviere Community Council, 2012).



Geographical Description

The survey area is located in western St. Louiy,@s illustrated in Figure 1. The industrial secto
associated with the #4Vard parallels the neighborhood's early railroattidor flanked by Manchester
Avenue, which served as an early farm-to-marked.r@airing the 1950s-60s, this corridor was further
shaped by Interstate-44; and reconfiguration of Riner des Peres corridor (which occurred in the
1910s) also did much to advance the industrial Gi@ons within the area. Today, the"2®ard is
bounded roughly by Interstate 64 (north), Hamptowerfue (east), Arsenal Street (south), and
McCausland Avenue/city limits of St. Louis (west).

The neighborhood is largely comprised of nineteesutid early-to-late twentieth-century industrial
buildings; though a large part of the ward alsodbohineteenth- and twentieth-century residences
(single-family and multi-family). The ward has acstg commercial presence, particularly in relation
Interstate 64 (just south of Forest Park) and alGtayton, Hampton, and Manchester Avenues. This
study/survey report only addresses industrial arshufacturing properties. Further research of the
ward’s residential and commercial buildings is Iyké yield evidence of areas that support historic
districts and individually eligible properties.

The properties associated with the survey, whicmprse the 24 Ward’s industrial/manufacturing
facilities, are generally constructed of brick amhcrete; though examples of metal and frame mgkli
are also present. These properties generally ftanls associated with truck and automobile-related
traffic, such as Manchester and Hampton Avenuesjgh smaller thoroughfares such as Sublette and
Arsenal also support a number of industrial/manufaing-related buildings. Most of the industriaéar
centers on the railroad, which extends along thethsside of Manchester Avenue. This area, commonly
referred to as the central railroad/River des Pewgsdor, historically supported brick factorieada
mills where many of St. Louis’ Irish and Italian nmigrants worked. As a result, much of the housing
stock in and around this area consisted of shofgan frame and brick dwellings; many of which
remain standing today. Roads surrounding the im@lisbrridor are paved with asphalt; as are adjace
lots that surround these properties. Some of tighberhood’s roads are paved with brick, illustgti
the original streets associated with the ChelteriBagtown (Zﬁf‘ Ward) neighborhood. Of note, the
Italian neighborhood commonly known as “The Hillvithin the city's 16 Ward) is situated
immediately south of the industrial corridor/survanea. This neighborhood is historically associated
with the survey area, as many residents workeleaindustrial complexes in Cheltenhamt?ZNard).



Survey Results

In April 2012, Landmarks conducted a windshieldveyrof the 24 Ward in an effort to identify
properties that may be eligible under the MultipRroperty Documentation Form (MPDF),
“Manufacturing and Goods Distribution Resources, I1Siuis Independent City” (drafted in 2012;
pending state review). The survey included drivalgstreets within the study area (Figure 1) and
photography/identification of industrial buildingséources within the area. Preliminary research was
completed that included the perusal of Sanborn mapgsa records search utilizing city directoried an
building permits; in an effort to identify dates @nstruction, original building uses, architeatsl/ar
builders, etc. Utilizing the survey data and pratiany research, Landmarks recommends six (6)
properties within the 2% Ward boundaries as potentially eligible for the H¥R Table 1 (below)
provides a list of the properties identified duritige survey. Not all of the identified propertie® a
recommended as potentially eligible for the NRHPe do alterations and/or lack of historical
significance. Future research or restoration ofsehéuildings to their original appearances, may;
however, lead to future designations of NRHP eliigyb

Recommendations about the identified propertiespaowided below. It should be noted that these
recommendations are preliminary; and researchietig the city’s Cultural Resources Office (CRO)
and/or Missouri State Historic Preservation OffildO-SHPO) should be coordinated prior to
proceeding with any related NRHP project underasociated MPDF.

Table 1. Surveyed Industrial Properties, 24" Ward (Cheltenham/Dogtown), April 2012

Property Name Address Construction Potentially
Date Eligible? (Y/N)

American Furnace Company 1300 Hampton Avenue 1950 Y
Monroe Calculator Company 1425 Hampton Avenue 1960 N
Ark Plastics, Inc. 1919 Hampton Avenue 1954 N
Colcord-Wright Machinery 6115 Eveline Avenue 1955 Y
Marlo Coil Company 6135 Manchester Avenue 1945 Y
Cope Plastics 6340 Knox Industrial Drive 1969 N
Loose Leaf Metals Corp. 6800 Arsenal Street 1947 Y
Polar Wave Ice & Fuel 6801 Hoffman Avenue 1928 N
Scullin/Defense Plant Corp. 6703 Southwest Avenue 942144 N
Carpenters Union/Training Hall  1401/1330 HamptoreAwe 1956 Y
Vera Lodge Hall 6319 Wilson Avenue 1890 N
Scullin Steel Administration 6691 Manchester Avenue 1943 Y
Fruin-Colnon Construction 2101 Clifton Avenue 1929 N




Property Information & Recommendations

Landmarks recommends the following six (6) propmsrts eligible for the National Register of Histori
Places (NRHP) under the related Multiple Propenpginentation Form (MPDF) — Manufacturing and
Goods Distribution Resources, St. Louis Indepen@atyt

* 1300 Hampton Avenue (American Furnace Company)

* 6115 Eveline Avenue (Colcord-Wright Machinery)

» 6135 Manchester Avenue (Marlo Coil Company)

* 6800 Arsenal Street (Loose Leaf Metals Corp/U.$&dBr)

* 1401 and 1330 Hampton Avenue (Carpenters Union&a@Haining School)
* 6691 Manchester Avenue (Scullin Steel Administratuilding)

The National Register of Historic Places “is thdioidl Federal list of districts, sites, buildings,

structures, and objects significant in Americantdrig architecture, archaeology, engineering and
culture.” Properties may be eligible for the National Reggist they meet at least one of the following

four National Register Criteria.

» Criterion A-properties relate to (or played a role in) an histevent/series of events.

» Criterion B — properties associated with an individual who/gthan integral role in state, local,
and/or national events.

» Criterion C — properties significant for architecture, workrmslip, artistic contributions,
engineering, and/or relationship in community plagrand development.

» Criterion D — properties important for information they hate potential to yield; most often
applies to archaeological resources.

Additionally, eligible properties must retain integyg, which pertains to seven physical aspectshef t
property including location, design, setting, miadst workmanship, feeling and associatfon.

American Furnace Company, 1300 Hampton Avenue

Located at 1300 Hampton Avenue is the former AnagriEurnace Company building, constructed in
1950. Designed by Russell A. Conzelman, the offiee¢house was constructed by John Hill
Construction Company for an estimated $125900®e building was a combination use office and
warehouse for the American Furnace Company, incatpd in 1900. The firm was originally located
near 2% and Pine Streets in downtown St. Louis until 1948en a new building was erected at 2719-
31 Delmar Boulevard. From its second location, dbmpany moved to the new building on Hampton
Avenue in the early 1950s. The modern facility enpassed 37,000 square feet, 23,000 of which were

1 U.S. Department of Interior National Park Servidational Register Bulletin 16: Guideline for Corjog National
Register of Historic Places Fornfg/ashington, D.C., Self-published, 1991), 1.

2U.S. Department of Interior National Park Servisational Register Bulletin 15: How to Apply the Idaal Register
Criteria for Evaluation(Washington, D.C., Self-published, 1991), 44-45.

3 St. Louis Daily RecordL2 April 1950, p. 8.



dedicated to the warehouse functions. The buileag designed to accommodate freight delivery and
transportation, as well as provide space for adstretive support, sales offices, and a “testing
laboratory and system design division” situatedhi® upper section of the west two-story wing facing
Hampton Avenué.

Architect Russell Conzelman was born in 1892 in_L8uis to Gustaf and Anne Artellr [sic] Conzelman.
He began his independent architectural practicEOR0 and worked until his death in 1952. He resided
in Richmond Heights (St. Louis County); was martiedrrances E. Conzelman; and the couple had one
son, William R. and two daughters, Betty McKelveydalane McGuire. Conzelman is best known for
his residential work, having designed a number omés on Flora, Longfellow, and Hawthorne
Avenues in the Compton Heights neighborhdod.

The American Furnace Company manufactured resmlefiirnaces and cooling systefnsThe
company’s original officers included William D. Himon, John H. Caux and Harry V. Boysén
addition to the St. Louis factory, the company disol a factory complex in Red Bud, lllinois; which
opened in 1941 and closed in 1991. In 1968, Ameriearnace merged with Singer and became known
as the Singer American Furnace Comp&By. that time, the company manufactured residehgaiting
and cooling equipment, with annual sales averagioge than eleven million dollafsin 1983, the
company was sold to Snyder General Corpordficfhe building’s current tenant, Consumer Credit
Counseling, has occupied the property since tHg 2880s.

American Furnace Company at 1300 Hampton Avenueapypeligible for the NRHP under the MPDF
context of “Mid-Twentieth Century Development ofdlrstrial and Manufactured Goods Distribution
Facilities in the Central Railroad and Interstatridor, 1940 — 1970.” The building appears to meet
both Criterion A (for its industrial history relagy to the former furnace company) and CriteriorfdC (
its noteworthy architectural design).

* American Furnace Company, Corporate Files CobhectMissouri Historical Society, St. Louis, MO.
® Architect Files, Landmarks of St. Louis, Inc.
6 .
Ibid.
" Corporate History, MHS.
8 Babette Morgan and Daniel R. Browning, “Plant @igsAffects 650 in Red Bud3t. Louis Post-Dispat¢i25 September
1991.
° “Singer Co. to Add Heating Concerrihe New York Time&8 August, 1967.
9 Morgan and Browning.



Figure 3. American Furnace Company, 1300 Hampton Avenue; view isnortheast.



Figure4. Sanborn
Company at 1300 Hampton Avenue.
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Monroe Calculator Company, 1425 Hampton Avenue

The building at 1425 Hampton Avenue was construeeda sales/service facility for the Monroe
Calculator Company in 1960. Monroe Calculator Campwas a business machine manufacturer
established in 1911 by Frank Stanley Baldwin ang B8&onroe. Baldwin designed the first
multiplication calculator in 1875. Three years aftard, Willgodt T. Odhner of Sweden added to
Baldwin’s design; and in 1892, a Germany companynBviga, began manufacturing Baldwin-Odhner
calculators. The company name changed in 1912 tord&o (for Jay Monroe, who initiated the
machine’s mass production). Brunsviga continuedthémufacture calculators in the United States for
several years afterward; but changed the brand rnianiMarchant.** In 1968, a corporate merger
occurred that placed the company under ownershiBaphier, Lerner and Schindler, Inc., though it
continued to be known by its Monroe nomenclatdr&he Monroe Calculator sales building on
Hampton Avenue was purchased in 1988 by ConsumeditC€ounseling; which moved to 1300
Hampton Avenue (noted previously) in the early 80 he current occupant is Davita Dialysis.

Figure5. Monroe Calculator Company Sales Office, 1425 Hampton Avenue; view is northwest.

' Edwin D. Reilly,Milestones in Computer Science and Information Metigy (Westport, CT: Greenwood Publishing
Group, 2003), p. 26.

12 Missouri Secretary of State, Corporate Database¢BeAvailable at:
https://www.s0s.mo.gov/BusinessEntity/soskb/CSeasg?dtm=6241203703708Kccess date: 24 April 2012).

13 “Real Estate Notes3t. Louis Post-Dispatct80 October 1988.

11



The former Monroe Calculator Company at 1425 Hamp@teenue does not appear to be eligible for the
NRHP under the MPDF mid-century context. The buidis a common property type that did not play
an integral role in Monroe Calculator Company’s\aiiés.
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Ark Plastics, Inc., 1919 Hampton Avenue

The building at 1919 Hampton Avenue was construgtetd54 as a warehouse/office facility for Ark
Plastics, incorporated in 1966. The business, owmedAdelaide L. Gatter, manufactured molded
plastics. The company was dissolved in the ear§08%' During the mid-to-late 1970s, the building
was occupied by O’Brien Equipment CompanyToday, the property is owned by Art Effects
Unlimited; more commonly known by its business nootature offf&f (form function & finesse). The
site originally included the extant one-story briffice wing and an attached warehouse wing (north
end) that has been demolished.

Figure 7. Ark Plastics, Inc., 1919 Hampton Avenue; view is northwest.

The former Ark Plastics building at 1919 HamptoreAue does not appear to be eligible for the NRHP.
Although the building’s construction date and styti appearance fit the general context(s) of the
MPDF, removal of the original north warehouse wiogmpromises the property’s architectural
integrity, rendering it ineligible for NRHP listing

14 Missouri Secretary of State, Corporate Database.
15 polk’s St. Louis City Directory1969-1970, Detroit: Self-published.

13



Colcord-Wright Machinery (61715 Eveline).

14



Colcord-Wright Machinery & Supply Company, 6115 Eveline Avenue

Located at 6115 Eveline Avenue is the former Caleédiright Machinery and Supply building. The
property was constructed in 1955 for J.C. Lafflsnacombination office/warehouse. The building is
currently occupied (and used as a branch officeptiyneider Electric Company. The Colcord-Wright
Machinery & Supply Company incorporated in 1911 aodtinued to operate in St. Louis through
2004*° The original establishment was associated witht&¥a@Rea Colcord, a machinery and supply
businessman born in St. Louis in 1867. Colcord hegarking as a “machinery merchant” in 1895.
The business was initially known as W.R. Colcord chlaery Company. When the business
incorporated (1911), the name was changed to GbMéright Machinery & Supply?

The former Colcord-Wright Machinery building at @GlLEveline Avenue is a good example of a
combination mid-century office/warehouse buildidg such, the property appears potentially eligible
for the NRHP under the MPDF context of mid-centungustrial/manufacturing facilities. If the
building’s interior space remains relatively unedte and intact; and research provides sufficient
evidence of the building’s historical associatiomselation to the context of trucking/transporati the
property would be eligible under the MPDF. Furthesearch is recommended to fully develop the role
of Colcord-Wright during the mid-twentieth-centugnd to evaluate the building’s design in relation
the MPDF mid-century trucking context.

Figure9. Colcord-Wright Machinery, 6115 Eveline Avenue; view is northwest.

16 Missouri Secretary of State, Corporate Database.
17 Albert Nelson Marquis (ed)The Book of St. Louisa€hicago: A.N. Marquis & Company, 1912), p. 125.
18 |bid & Missouri Secretary of State, Corporate Daise.
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Marlo Coil Company, 6135 Manchester Avenue

The Marlo Coil Company Building at 6135 Manchesd®enue was constructed in 1945, replacing an
earlier structure used for the same purpd3eghe Art Moderne influenced warehouse/office was
designed for Marlo Coil Company, which manufactuid conditioner coils. The company was
established in 1925 and incorporated in 1946; atutlthe same time the modern building was
constructed. The original owner was Angelo Marl&bfLouis, and the company’s original officersoals
included Caesar D. Marlo and Louis Pellegrini. thitee men resided in the Italian neighborhood south
of the survey area known as “The Hill” (Ward 78).

The property at 6135 Manchester Avenue, construasean air conditioner coil manufacturing facility,
appears eligible under the MPDF mid-century contéke building is likely significant under Criterio
A (industrial associations) and Criterion C (arehbitre). It is an excellent example of a streardline
industrial/warehouse facility that retains muchiteforiginal architectural fabric and integrity. iGinal
windows and exterior details are intact (exteriovhich exemplify its original design and period of
significance.

Figure 10. Marlo Coil Copany, 6135 Manchester Avenue; view is northwest.

19 City of St. Louis, Assessor’s Office. Building @Permit for 6135 Manchester Avenue.
20 Missouri Secretary of State, Corporate Databimtjstrial Development Research Cour{piltlanta]: Conway
Publications, 1967), Vol. 136, p. @Gould’s St. Louis City Directory, 1938.
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Cope Plastics, 6340 Knox Industrial Drive

The warehouse/office building at 6340 Knox IndadtBrive was constructed in 1969 as a sales office
and warehouse for Cope Plastics, currently heatlepear in Alton, lllinois. The company incorporated
in Missouri in 1975 Cope Plastics originated in 1958 in Godfrey, i) owned and operated by
Dwight Cope (who began working in the St. Louissfilzss industry in 1946). The company was
established to “furnish . . . fabricated and semished parts” to the St. Louis region. The bussnes
remains in operation today; but no longer utilites 1960s building on Knox Industrial Dri¢@The
building is currently owned by Chemisphere Corporat

Figure 12. CopPIasticsSaI%/arehouse Facility at 6340 K nox | ndustrial D|v; view issouthwest.

21 Missouri Secretary of State, Corporate Database.
22 Cope Plastics Website, Available lttp://www.copeplastics.com/history.htigficcess date: 25 April 2012).
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Figure 13. Map illustrating location of Cope Plastics at 6340 Knox |ntustrial Drive.

The Cope Plastics warehouse at 6340 Knox Indudbiale does not appear eligible for the NRHP.
Based on preliminary research, the building’s fuorctvas supportive to the headquarters in Godfrey,
lllinois. Additionally, the facility was construadeless than 50 years ago and does not illustrate
exceptional historical or architectural significan@ requirement for listing properties to the NRH&

are less than 50 years of age).
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Loose Leaf Metals Corp., 6800 Arsenal Street

The Loose Leaf Metals Corp. warehouse/sales bgil(tommonly known as U.S. Ring and Binder) at
6800 Arsenal Street was constructed in 1947. Thepamy manufactured three-ring binders and
hardware for loose leaf notebooks. In 1989, thep@ry was purchased by General Binding of
Northbrook, lllinois; a subsidiary of U.S. Ring aBthder? The building remains under the ownership
of U.S. Ring and Binder, and appears to have beemally altered since its construction in the 1840
As such, the Loose Leaf Metals Corp. (U.S. Ring ad@r) warehouse/sales office at 6800 Arsenal
Street is an excellent example of a mid-centuryelwanse/manufacturing facility that served the
railroad/River des Peres industrial corridor. Thailding meets the MPDF mid-century context
(trucking and transportation, post World War Ildaetains a high degree of architectural integiitye
property appears eligible in relation to the MPDHigl-century context; and its design and constoucti
meet the standards of integrity that would rentleligible for the NRHP.

‘

Figure 14. U.S. Ring and Binder at 6800 Arsenal Street; view is southeast from the inter section of Arsenal and
Jamieson.

Z “Illinois Firm Buys Loose Leaf Metals 3t. Louis Post-Dispatcfl0 August 1989).
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Polar Wave Ice and Fuel Warehouse, 6801 Hoffman Avenue

The two-story brick warehouse at 6801 Hoffman Awemvas constructed in 1928; probably for the
Polar Wave Ice and Fuel Company. Building permits umnavailable (lost or mislabeled per microfilm
records); however, city directories indicate thataP Wave had a warehouse on Hoffman during the
early 1930s. Directories also indicate that by 19B2 company had more than 20 similar facilities
across the city. By the 1950s, the building wasiuse City Products Corporation (also known as City
Ice and Fuel Company) and in the 1960s by JackaBley as a chemical warehoféérhe facade wing
was added in the late 1950s; and has been recantlified with brick re-facing, replacement windows
and doors. The current owner is Metro Electric Camyp

Figure 16. Former Polar Wave | ce and Fuel Warehouse, 6801 Hoffman Avenue; view is northeast.

The former Polar Wave Ice and Fuel Warehouse at 6&fifmanAvenue does not appear eligible for
the NRHP. The building has been extensively altesiete original construction through a facade
addition and replacement of original windows/dodrise property did not play a significant role ireth
company'’s industrial activities; and was one of ynanch warehouses constructed in and around the
city during the early 1900s.

24 Gould's St. Louis City Directories, 1932-48plk’s St. Louis City Directories, 1969 and 1974.
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Defense Plant Corporation / Scullin Steel, 6703 Southwest Avenue

In 1942, a series of building permits were issweddnstruct a large defense plant/warehouse complex
along the Missouri-Pacific Railroad tracks withiretRiver des Peres industrial corridor. As has been
discussed in the related MPDF, the government oacted a number of wartime plants and warehouses
to support the nation’s involvement in World Wardhd the Cheltenham industrial area was one that
supported numerous steel manufacturing facilitieeng the 1940s. Much of this area was used by
Scullin Steel, Fruin-Colnon Construction, and Vulcateel. Today, segments of the defense complex
along Southwest and Manchester Avenues remaintjntagtuding warehouses and railroad bridges.
The best example of these warehouses is the kawhkty currently used by BSI Contractors at 6703
Southwest Avenue. It is likely that adjacent waredes clad in synthetic materials (east of the BSI
warehouse) are similar in style and constructidmese warehouses were part of the Scullin / Defense
Plant Corporation complex erected to support Wavlr 11 activities.

The Defense Plant Corporation was a subsidiaryhef Reconstruction Finance Corporation (RFC),
created to provide federal funding and loans forrld/@Var I production in 1942° The property on
Southwest was developed to support the activitrefeuthe corporation’s lending program; providing
space for Scullin’s steel production complex. (Auhial information about Scullin is provided in ghi
report — pages 32-33 — in relation to the comparadsninistration building at 6691 Manchester
Avenue). The factory site on Southwest Avenue wagially planned to produce steel for
Boeing/Wright Aeronautical Corporation, which maactiired war planes. Also involved in the project
was Packard Motor Car Company, which manufactureldsRRoyce engines for the plarfésThe
estimated costs of initial plant construction iM23vere over 1.8 million dollars.

It is unlikely that the remaining buildings asseecwith the former Defense Plant Corporation /li8cu
complex are eligible for the NRHP, as they represerly a small segment of the entire industrial
complex. Additional research is recommended toyfdivelop the related context; and to determine
whether altered warehouses (currently clad withthsstic siding) retain historic materials. Building
permits on file with the City of St. Louis indicatkat no less than 20 buildings and structures were
constructed in relation to the 1940s-era projeotdly, at least four properties are extant, inclgdimee
warehouses and one railroad bridge.

% United States Government Manual, 1945 — DivisibRublic Inquiries-Office of War Information. Avaible online at:
http://www.ibiblio.org/hyperwar/ATO/USGM/FLA.htm{Access date: 25 April 2012).

26 478,500,000 Loaned for Plane Planfslie New York Timeg@2 August 1942).

27 Building Permits, Inspection Fees. Documents abéal at City Hall, City of St. Louis, Missouri.
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Figure 18. Warehouse constructed in the early 1940s as part of the Defense Plant complex at 6703 Southw@venue;
view is northwest.

-

Figure 19. Railroad bridge constructed in 1944 under the Defense Plant complex on Southwest (adjacent to I nterstate
44); view is southeast.
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Carpenters Union Hall and Training School, 1401 & 1330 Hampton Avenue

The Carpenters Union Hall at 1401 Hampton Avenus w@nstructed in 1956. Designed by Study,
Farrar & Majers, the building’s interior is alsotaworthy, associated with Design Inc., a subsidary
the Bank Building and Equipment Corporation (BBE@erior finishes (which remain intact today)
include walnut, rosewood, cherry and mahogany - oéllwhich were intended to display the
workmanship of the union members, for whom theding was designed. The project total for initial
construction was an estimated $1,350,000. Acrassttieet from the main hall/lheadquarters is aitrgin
school, also constructed in 1956 (at 1330 Hamptwende)’® The local labor union is currently
associated with the United Brotherhood of Carpantestablished in 1882 by Peter J. McGairét.
Louis’ chapter predates the national associatiorabjeast a decade, indicated by 1875 newspaper
accounts of the local organization’s activitiés.

Figure 21. Carpenters Union Hall at 1401 Hampton Avenue; view is southwest.

8 Kirk Huffaker, “Defining Downtown at Mid-CenturyWebsite, Available online at:
http://www.midcenturybanks.recentpast.org/architeffeatured-buildings/item/54-Carpenters-distaatincil-of-greater-st-
louis-1958(Access date: 26 April 2012) and Building perngistive) on file with the City of St. Louis.

29 Carpenters District Council of Greater St. Lodgebsite, Available atttp:/www.carpdc.org/About/Default.asgiccess
date: 26 April 2012).

%0 “The Co-operating CarpentersSt. Louis Post-Dispatci0 August 1875.
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Figure 22. Carpenters Training School, 1330 Hampton Avenue; view is northeast.

Study, Farrar & Majers evolved from the firm of Ro& Study, established in 1911; of which Guy
Study (1880 — 1959) was a partner. Study becamergggrtner in 1915; and over time, the partnership
also included Benedict Farrar (who joined the finL916) and Alf H. Majers (by the 1950%)The
firm was well known regionally, designing “a numbgr public buildings and churches, among them
Firmin Desloge Hospital, St. Paul's Episcopal Chuithe Church of Our Lady of Lourdes, St. Luke’s
Catholic Church, . . . Howard’s Bend and Chain otk Waterworks Design, Inc., which planned
the interior of Carpenters Union Hall, was (as dpta branch of the Bank Building and Equipment
Corporation (BBEC), established by Joseph H. Gaader Louis J. Orbaka in the 1920s. Design Inc.
was added to the company’s umbrella during the 49&ten banks began to close and no projects were
forthcoming. The subsidiary created a new niche tiee BBEC, designing “swank new cocktail
lounges” and hotel interiors.

The Carpenters Union Hall and Training Building eppeligible for the NRHP under the MPDF mid-
century context in regard to labor halls and unighgremiere example of its type, the Carpentert Ha
retains exterior and interior original finishes amaterials. The building meets Criterion A (histati
associations under the MPDF context) and Crite@ofarchitecture and workmanship). The associated
Training Hall, though less elegant in compositismn integral component of the union’s local fitieis

and is considered a contributing feature of theerty.

31 Architects Files: Study & Farrar; Landmarks Assticin of St. Louis, Inc.
32 Missouri Historical SocietyBulletin, July 1959, pp. 346-47.
3 Mary Kimbrough, “They Gained Success the Hard W&y, Louis Post-Dispatc{2 March 1942).
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Figure 23. Sanborh Fire Insurance M aps, 1964 (Volume 10; Shekts 19 and 21)illustrating locations 6fuCarpenters

Union Hall (1401/Hampton Avenue) and Training School (1330 Hampton Avenue).
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Vera Lodge Hall, 6319 Wilson Avenue

The Vera Lodge Hall at 6319 Wilson Avenue was cwmséd for the Ancient Order of United
Workman (AOUW) in 1890. The building has also besed as an industrial property, housing both oil
and clothing factories during the early-to-mid 1890Currently, the building is owned by a chemical
company. The AOUW was organized in 1868 in Penm@syl, founded by a Mason, John J. Upchurch.
The organization had a large number of lodges inL8&tis, including the Clifton Heights lodge on
Wilson Avenue®* By the 1880s, the AOUW had roughly 176,000 membems 3,200 lodges
nationwide. The union was initiated to provide irawce for factory workers, who received no benefits
from their employers. Members joined by paying doés$1.00, and benefits were passed along to
beneficiaries; who were also required to pay $&¢h. Lodges provided a place where members could
meet and socialize. In many instances, such eskabéints also served as political foruts.

Figure24. VeraHall AOUW L odge at 6319 Wilson Avenue; view is northeast.

34 «“Ancient Order of United Workmen (A.O.U.W.) indeSt. Louis Public Library; Premier Library Sourcéwailable at:
http://previous.slpl.org/libsrc/fratl.htfAccess date: 5 April 2012) and AOUW Website at:
http://www.phoenixmasonry.org/masonicmuseum/fragksm/aouw.htn{Access date: 5 April 2012).

% Fargo, North Dakota, AOUW exhibit dittp://www.fargo-history.com/other2/aouw-pml.h{ccess date: 26 April 2012).
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Figure25‘. Sanborn Fire Insurance M ap, 1926 (Volume 10; Sheet 47) showing location of Vera L odge at 6319 Wilson
Avenue.

The Vera Lodge AOUW Hall at 6319 Wilson Avenue daes appear to be eligible for the NRHP due
to modifications that have compromised the buildingrchitectural integrity, such as enclosure of
original windows and doors. However, further reskas recommended to further assess and document
the property’s role in the neighborhood and the GitSt. Louis’ labor movements/organizations.
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Scullin Steel Administration Building, 6691 Manchester Avenue

The Scullin Steel administration building at 669amMdhester Avenue was constructed in 1943 to serve
as the company’s main administrative offices. Dgriworld War II, Scullin became one of the
government’s largest steel contractors; and mucthefindustrial corridor within the survey area was
dedicated to the company’s production activitiesullB’'s complex also included the Defense Plant
Corporation warehouses and railroad bridge on SeeghAvenue (noted above). The administration
building was surveyed separately due to its pronéeeon Manchester Avenue; and its likelihood to be
individually eligible for the NRHP under the MPDFid¥century context. The building is currently
owned and used by Copying Concepts/Sumner Group.

SCULLIN STEEL c‘@
2 N——

8!

HEE E

Figure 26. Sculli Stel diiraon iIdin at 6691 Manchester Avenue; view isnort.

Scullin Steel Company was established (in St. Dounisl898. By the 1930s, the company’s complex
encompassed much of the Des Peres industrial oortitht extends through the ®4Vvard. Scullin
employed more than 1,200 individuals in the 1930ke steel production site stretched along
approximately 12 blocks, parallel to the MissousicRic Railroad/River des Peres corridor bordering
Manchester Avenue. Today, very little is left oé ttormer steel production complex; but the builting
administration building still stands. This building a noteworthy example of the company’s presence
and the best representation of Scullin’s World \N/&ra activities. The firm closed in 1981; aftehiah
time most of the associated industrial buildingsexgemolished®

% Tim Fox,Where We LiveA Guide To St. Louis Communitiggt. Louis: Missouri Historical Society Press, 399. 119.
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Figure 27. Sanborn Fire I nsurance Map, 1964 (Volume 10; Sheet 39) illustr ates the location of the Scullin Steel
Administration Building at 6691 M anchester Avenue.




Fruin-Colnon Construction Company, 2101 Clifton Avenue

The Fruin-Colnon Construction complex at 2101 GihiftAvenue was constructed in 1929-37. The site
encompasses two warehouses and a c. 1980 oneedtimey building. The buildings were originally
associated with the Fruin-Colnon Construction Camyp&ruin-Colnon began as a partnership between
Jeremiah Fruin and his son-in-law, Redmond Ste@wnon. Jeremiah Fruin (1831-1912) was born in
Ireland. His family moved to Brooklyn in 1834 and1861, Fruin moved to St. Louis. He worked for
the Army’s quartermaster division and after theilCiWar, gained employment as a road contractor.
Fruin was largely involved in many of the city’slread and waterworks contracts, including Bissell
Waterworks. The company also landed a number dfoaai contracts and constructed much of the
Missouri-Pacific/Frisco infrastructure that domiesitthe city’s central transportation corridor. Rrui
formed a partnership with his daughter’s husbanegnr®nd Stephen Colnon (1862-1927) in 1900.
Colnon’s experience was that as an engineer. Hebamarsin New York to Irish immigrant parents; and
moved to St. Louis in 1892 after gaining a positainFruin & Bambrick. Colnon married Catherine
Fruin in 1895. The original company name, Fruin &nibrick Construction Company, was changed to
Fruin-Colnon in 1908

Figure 28. Fruin-Colnon Construction Company at 2101 Clifton Avue; view is southwest.

37 State of Missouri, Certificates of Death: Jerenfiahin and Stephen Colnon; A.B. Koenig, “St. Loliesns,” The
Contractor(Vol. 15: 15 March 1912), p. 51; Marquis, p. 12@ddru-Con Construction website:
http://www.frucon.com/c20/FruCon-Construction-Carqiion--Our-History--A-Legacy-of-Performance.h{#ccess date:
27 April 2012).
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Figure 29. SaWI nsurance M ari 1951 wom&ié_m; Sheet 47) illustrates location of Fruin-Colnon.
Construction 101 Clifton Avenue.

The Fruin-Colnon complex on Clifton Avenue does appear eligible for the NRHP under the MPDF.
The small complex appears to have served as a mupport facility for the contracting firm; which
remains in business today as “Fru-Con,” headquettar Ballwin, Missourf® The property holds two
warehouses and a late-twentieth century officedimgi none of which appear to be historically or
architecturally significant. The property is curtlgrowned by a chemical company.

38 Fry-Con Construction website.
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Recommendations

The windshield survey of Ward 24’s industrial pra@s, conducted in April 2012, identified six (6)
properties that appear potentially eligible fotitig to the National Register of Historic PlacedHRP)
under the Multiple Property Documentation Form (MBDentitled, “Manufacturing and Goods
Distribution Resources, St. Louis Independent Cityl of the six properties recommended as eligible
under the MPDF fit the context (under the MPDF e¢bwd “Mid-Twentieth Century Development of
Industrial and Manufactured Goods Distribution KFaes in the Central Railroad and Interstate
Corridor, 1940 — 1970.”

The NRHP recommendations are based on prelimiremsgarch and the survey; as well as the MPDF'’s
mid-century context. These properties, though pathy eligible, should be coordinated with the
Cultural Resources Office (CRO) and State Hist®ieservation Office (SHPO) prior to proceeding
with preparation of any National Register Nominatiti is further recommended that future contexds b
developed to assess properties in the ward areégptbdate the mid-century manufacturing context.
Development of an earlier period context may adthér information that could increase the number of
potentially eligible industrial properties withihe study area.
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